
 

 

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Joanne Thomas 
 (Tel: 07714 600912   Email: thomaj8@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Date: 22nd June 2023 

 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
A multi-locational  meeting of the Cabinet as Trustees of Blackwood Miners Institute  will be held in 
Penallta House and via Microsoft Teams on Wednesday, 28th June, 2023 at 1.30 pm (or immediately 
following the meeting of Cabinet) to consider the matters contained in the following agenda.  

Members of the Public or Press may attend in person or at Penallta House or may view the meeting live 
via the following link: https://civico.net/caerphilly . You are welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, a 
minimum notice period of 3 working days is required should you wish to do so. A simultaneous 
translation will be provided on request. 
 
This meeting will be live streamed and a recording made available to view via the Council’s website, 
except for discussions involving confidential or exempt items.  Therefore the images/audio of those 
individuals present and/or speaking at Cabinet will be publicly available to all via the recording on the 
Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Pages 
  
1  To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 
 
 
  

Public Document Pack

https://civico.net/caerphilly
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/


2  Declarations of Interest.   
 
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal 
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any items of business on this agenda in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for 
both Councillors and Officers. 
 

To approve and sign the following minutes:- 
 
3  Cabinet As Trustees of Blackwood Miners Institute held on 25th January 2023. 

1 - 2  
 

4  Blackwood Miners' Institute Update Report. 
3 - 8  

 
 
Circulation: 

Councillors C. Andrews, S. Cook, E. Forehead, N. George, P. Leonard, C. Morgan, S. Morgan, 
J. Pritchard and E. Stenner 
 
And Appropriate Officers 
 
HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION 
Those individuals that attend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes of that meeting, 
sometimes this will include their place of employment or business and opinions expressed.  Minutes of Meetings including details 
of speakers will be publicly available to all via the Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussions involving 
confidential or exempt items. 
You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the rights of access to information we hold about you and 
the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your information is being processed. 
For further information on how we process your information and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy 

Notice on our website or contact Legal Services by email griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028. 

 
 

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk


  

 
 

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE 
 

MINUTES OF THE MULTI-LOCATIONAL MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE 

AND VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

ON WEDNESDAY, 25TH JANUARY 2023 AT 1.30PM 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor S. Morgan – Chair 
 

Councillors: 
 
 J. Pritchard (Cabinet Member for Prosperity, Regeneration & Climate Change), N. George 

(Cabinet Member for Corporate Services & Property), C. Andrews (Cabinet Member for 
Education & Communities), S. Cook (Cabinet Member for Housing), J. Simmonds (Cabinet 
Member for Highways & Transportation), E. Forehead (Cabinet Member for Social Care), P. 
Leonard (Cabinet Member for Planning & Public Protection) and C. Morgan (Cabinet Member 
for Waste, Leisure & Green Spaces).  

 
 Together with: 

 
C. Harrhy (Chief Executive), D. Street (Corporate Director - Social Services and Housing), M. 
S. Williams (Corporate Director – Economy and Environment), and S. Harris (Head of Financial 
Services & S151 Officer). 

 
Also in Attendance: 

 
R. Tranter (Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer), A. Bolter (Visitor Economy and 
Destination Manager), E. Tong (Theatre and Arts Services Manager), R. Kyte (Head of Planning 
and Regeneration), J. Lloyd (Committee Services Officer), E. Sullivan (Senior Committee 
Services Officer). 
 
 
 
RECORDING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The Leader reminded those present that the meeting was being live streamed, and a recording 
would be made available to view via the Council’s website, except for discussions involving 
confidential or exempt items. Click Here To View. 

 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 There were no apologies for absence received.  
 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 There were no declarations of interest received. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

https://civico.net/caerphilly


  

3. CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS' INSTITUTE HELD ON 15TH JUNE 
2022 

 
 RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 15th June 2022 be approved as 
 a correct record. 
 

 
4.      BLACKWOOD MINERS' INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

– YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2022 

  
Consideration was given to the report which provided Cabinet as Trustees of Blackwood Miners 
Institute (BMI) the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts for the year ending 31st March 
2022. 
 
Cabinet placed on record their thanks to E. Tong, the staff of Blackwood Miners’ Institute and 
the Public for their faith and support in the venue which had struggled post pandemic but was 
now seeing visitor numbers returning to pre-covid levels and in the case of the 2022 Pantomime 
season generated the highest attendance levels of any previous production. 
 
Cabinet noted a matter of concern raised by Audit Wales in relation to the annual statement of 
accounts and was advised that this related to the way in which the Blackwood Miners’ Institute 
accounts were recorded in the General Ledger and their recommendation that this be recorded 
as a separate entry.  The Section 151 Officer confirmed that because of pressures within 
Financial Services it had not been possible to complete this work during this financial year, 
however a commitment had been made to do so in this next financial year. 
 
The Theatre and Arts Services Manager updated Cabinet on the successes of the last year and 
highlighted the flagship co-production ‘The Invisible Man’.  The importance of co-production 
works such as this was highlighted and the plans for the new Spring Season were detailed. 
 
Cabinet was assured that the BMI was working hard to operate as efficiently and effectively as 
possible and this included the streamlining of product sales. 
 
The work of the BMI Advisory Group was outlined and Cabinet noted the varied membership of 
the Group and the invaluable contribution that these volunteers made to the BMI. 
 
Following full consideration and discussion it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendation contained within the Officer’s report be approved and by way of Microsoft 
Forms this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report the content of the 
 Annual Report and audited Statement of Accounts for Blackwood Miners’ Institute for 

 Financial Year 201/22 be considered noted and endorsed. 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 13:50. 

 

Approved and signed as a correct record subject to any corrections made at the next meeting. 
 
 

____________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 2



 
 
 

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ 
INSTITUTE – 28TH JUNE 2023 

 

SUBJECT: BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE UPDATE REPORT 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR ECONOMY AND 

ENVIRONMENT  
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide Cabinet as Trustees a progress report on the artistic and operational 
activity at Blackwood Miners’ Institute. 

 
 

2. SUMMARY 

 
2.1 Blackwood Miners’ Institute (BMI) had it first full year of operating in 2022/23 following 

the Covid-19 pandemic. Audience figures and ticket sales were higher than projected 
despite the venue being in a recovery phase. 

 
2.2 The annual report and statement of accounts for the year ended 31st March 2022 were 

presented in a report to Cabinet as Trustees of Blackwood Miners’ Institute on 25 th 
January 2023.   

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 It is recommended that Cabinet as Trustees consider, note, and endorse the contents 

of this report. 
 

 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4.1 This report is intended to keep Cabinet as Trustees aware of artistic activity and 

operations at Blackwood Miners’ Institute. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 

 
5.1 Blackwood Miners’ Institute delivered 3 successful seasons of work in 2022/23. The 

average audience capacity for Spring 2022 was 70%. In Autumn 2022, the average 
capacity increased to 82%. These figures are higher than projected and an 
encouraging sign that we are recovering strongly after the pandemic. We exceeded 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



our income generation target for ticket sales by £52,000.  
 
5.2 Classes and other engagement work are also recovering since groups restarted in 

February 2022. BMI experienced a significant decline in the number of participants 
following the pandemic and officers are dedicating time, energy, and resources to 
promoting the classes programme in order to increase numbers and connect with 
new people. 

 
5.3 BMI has secured Arts Council Wales funding until 31st March 2024. In 2023/24, we 

have been awarded a grant of £131,300. We have applied for ongoing investment 
from April 2024 until March 2027. We have asked for an uplift to £180,000 per year. 
Decisions will be announced in September 2023. 

 
5.4 The Theatre and Arts Service Manager is working with a fundraising consultant to 

deliver a fundraising strategy and explore other funding streams for BMI. Blackwood 
Miners’ Advisory Group will support us to deliver any outcomes agreed with the 
fundraising consultant and CCBC.  
 
Financial Summary 2022/23 

 

5.5 Table 1 compares the actual income for 2022-23 with the original budget forecast at 
the start of the financial year.  

 
 Table 1: income 2022-23 
  
  

 Original budget 
forecast (£) 

Out-turn for 2022-
23 (£) 

Difference (£) 

Income (ticket 
sales) 

221,728.00 273,827.90 £52,099.90 

Income (bar sales) 34,320.00 40,206.27 5,886.27 
Income (hires) 38,366.00 28,689.20 -9,676.80 

 
 Several rooms in BMI are not available to hire currently due to urgent maintenance 

work. This has impacted BMI’s ability to generate hire income.    
 
 Staffing changes 
 

5.6 CW has been appointed as Business & Operations Manager. She started in February 
2023 replacing Craig Doidge who left in October 2022. Carys is settling in well and is 
reviewing BMI’s operations procedures.   

 
5.7 LM joined BMI as our third Technician in May 2023. This means our Technical team 

are at full capacity after several years of being understaffed.  
 
5.8 JF has been recruited as Arts Development Officer thanks to Shared Prosperity 

Funding. His remit is to establish creative community hubs across the County 
Borough.  

 
5.9 We are currently recruiting more casual Front of House Assistants in preparation for 

a busy Autumn 2023 season.  
 
 Artistic Activity and Programme 

 

Page 4



5.10 BMI has continued to deliver high quality performances, projects and support to 
artists and companies during this challenging period as follows: 

 Autumn 2022 Season – 35 different shows delivered ranging from dance to 
pantomime. The average audience capacity was 82%. 

 Spring 2023 Season – 35 scheduled performances running until the end of 

July. So far, attendance figures have been encouraging and audience 
feedback has been positive with an average rating of 4.8 out of 5.   

 Supported Artists & Co-Productions: 
o The Adventures of Sherlock Holmes – an original adaptation based 

on Conan Doyle’s The Adventures of Sherlock Holmes and co-
produced by BMI and Black Rat Productions. The cast have been 
selected and publicly announced. Following a successful tour of The 
Invisible Man last year, the performance is due to premiere at BMI in 
October 2023 and will then tour to 16 locations across Wales.  

o Trwbwl Mawr yn Tremyglyd – following a successful research and 

development phase, BMI supported a second R&D in September 
2022 which culminated in a sharing to an invited audience. The play is 
an original Welsh language script written by Chris Harris with original 
music from Mari Mathias. BMI are planning to apply for additional 
funds from Arts Council Wales to rehearse and perform the show at 
BMI and embark on a Wales-wide tour.  

o Tommy Cooper The Musical – we funded a 2-week residency for an 

original musical celebrating the life and legacy of Tommy Cooper. The 
piece was written by Stefan Pejic, music and lyrics by Dai Smith and 
Allyson Summerhayes. We delivered a sharing to an invited audience 
and received outstanding feedback. The Tommy Cooper society have 
been involved throughout the process and are supportive. We will be 
applying for further funding to develop the show as co-producer and 
plan to premiere it at Blackwood Miners’ in May 2024.   

 Summer 2023 – BMI is delivering 6 offsite performances in Summer 2023. 

Fabulous Animals at Parc Cwm Darran, Frogs in Bogs at Pen y Fan Pond, 
The Tortoise and the Hare at Caerphilly Library and the Great Big Story Mix 
Up at Risca Library. Through the Wales outdoor arts consortium, we have 
supported the creation of 3 outdoor shows. 2 of these will be programmed in 
Caerphilly County Borough in August – these will likely take place at 
Cwmcarn Forest and Parc Penallta.   

 Autumn 2023 – there are 41 performances planned for Autumn 2023 ranging 

from classical music to the annual pantomime. The BMI comedy nights are 
continuing once a month in the lower bar. The full programme will launch in 
July 2023.  

 Classes – in partnership with Arts Development, BMI have relaunched the 

classes programme to provide dance and drama classes for all ages plus 
Crochet Club.  

 
Arts Development Priorities 2023-24 
 
Wellbeing 

 

5.11  Arts Development work with the integrated wellbeing networks used Arts Council 
Wales funding for community-led projects that tackle local wellbeing issues in New 
Tredegar, Bargoed, Risca and Rhymney. This work has been codeveloped with 
communities to meet specific wellbeing needs. Intergenerational work with care 
homes and schools in partnership with Arts Care in Carmarthen has been developed. 
This ends in a performance with potential follow-on partnerships with New South 

Page 5



Wales in Australia. Outdoor projects such as ‘blue health’, which took people to the 
sea for movement and music for mental health and also outdoor moving in nature 
and journalling for a menopause project has been a huge success. A new part time 
Arts Officer has been recruited using SPF to address wellbeing needs in areas with 
little access to creativity, and also to develop a wellbeing network that leads to Social 
prescribing for the arts as an extra tool for the NHS & GPs that saves time and 
resources. 

 
Regeneration 

 

5.12 The Arts Development team worked with the Aber Valley using creativity to engage 
with the community for projects that bring people together and address local issues. 
This work has seen a team of writers, photographers and environmental artists talk to 
the community to look at every aspect of their lives to recommend change. There is 
the potential to draw in other support from funders and agencies to carry on some of 
the work longer term and officers are actively talking to them. The outcomes for the 
communities is dictated by the people themselves.  
 
Creating opportunities 

 

5.13 The theatre provision has been expanded to take in all ages so there are progression 
routes. Links and opportunities have been created with The National Theatre, and 
Caerphilly Youth Theatre performed as part of their recent Connections project where 
young people performed at Blackwood Miners’ and Theatr Brycheiniog. A National 
Arts & Education Network is being established as an independent charity which is 
delivering high quality training for teachers in the new curriculum, with courses 
developed according to need. Opportunities for local people to become involved with 
professional film making through the production of a short film have been created. 
This involved partnerships with screen skills and professional actors that delivered 
high quality training for those involved. 

 
 Advisory Group 
 
5.14 The next Advisory Group meeting will focus on widening engagement and consider 

how we work with audiences, participants, artists and key stakeholders. These ideas 
will feed into our work for the next 12 months and beyond.  

 
5.15 Over the next year, the Advisory Group will address Blackwood Miners’ 6 key aims to 

examine how we are achieving them and share new ideas.    
 
 Operations 
 

5.16 Carys Wehden and Eloise Tong have met with Mel Hunt and AMS Ventilation to 
discuss the ventilation works in the first-floor lounge and second-floor meeting room 
at BMI. These works will begin in Summer 2023 and will reduce ongoing 
condensation and damp issues. Work is expected to take no longer than six weeks 
and is not expected to impact the scheduled performance programme.     

 
Conclusion 
 

5.17 Despite the severe impact of the pandemic and the cost-of-living crisis, BMI have 
continued to deliver high quality projects, performances and support. BMI’s recovery 
will inevitably take time. The team remain committed to diversifying BMI’s income 
streams to reduce the subsidy.   

 

Page 6



5.18 The introduction of an Advisory Group will help the team tackle some of these key 
issues and ensure that the BMI becomes a more sustainable and resilient charitable 
organisation.  
 

 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 It is assumed that financial pressure as a result of the pandemic, Brexit, the war in 
Ukraine and the cost-of-living crisis will continue to impact on audiences’ disposable 
income as well as local authority budgets. Therefore, BMI will need to focus on 
increasing earned income, fundraising, and reducing running costs where possible.  

 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 This report is for Information Only so a completed IIA is not required.  
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1 The final out-turn for 2022-23 shows an underspend of £5,458.13. 
 
8.2 In 2023-24, savings of £50,000 have been agreed to reduce the level of Council 

subsidy. This is reflected in the 2023-24 budget. The majority of these savings are 
coming from our programming and marketing budget. Our workshops budget has 
also been reduced.   

 
8.3 As outlined in ‘Assumptions’, financial pressure due to the pandemic, Brexit and cost-

of-living crisis continues to impact CCBC and Blackwood Miners’ Institute budgets. 
To mitigate these risks, we have been working alongside a fundraising consultant to 
research potential funding streams through Trusts and Foundations and develop a 
comprehensive fundraising strategy. We have developed our understanding of 
audience behaviour by implementing an online feedback survey and running 
audience focus groups. This learning has enabled us to adapt our offer accordingly 
and ensure repeat business by increasing audience satisfaction. We are also 
investing in our facilities to encourage more customers to hire the building and grow 
this income stream. 

 
8.4 The Theatre and Arts Service Manager is developing a case for support and our 

improved website will feature a ‘Support Us’ page where we will share stories of how 
our work has had a positive impact and encourage people to donate. We aim to 
increase income through individual giving by 10% this financial year.       

 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1 There is now a full team at Blackwood Miners’ Institute that will ensure it operates 

smoothly and efficiently.  
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 

 
10.1 The comments from consultees are included in this report.  
 

Page 7



 
11. STATUTORY POWER  

 
11.1 Charities Act 2011, Local Government Act 1972 and the Trustees Act 1925.  
 
 
Author:        Eloise Tong, Theatre and Arts Service Manager, tonge@caerphilly.gov.uk  
     
 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive – harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 Mark S Williams, Corporate Director for Economy and Environment - 

willims@caerphilly.gov.uk  
Cllr Jamie Pritchard, Cabinet Member for Prosperity, Regeneration and 
Climate Change - jamespritchard@caerphilly.gov.uk 

 Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer – 
harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk 

 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer – 
trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk  

 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services – donoval@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 Dave Roberts, Principal Group Accountant – roberda@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning – 

kyter@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Services Manager – 

dallia@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Antony Bolter, Visitor, Economy and Destinations Manager – 
boltea@caerphilly.gov.uk  

Page 8

mailto:tonge@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:willims@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:jamespritchard@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:donoval@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:roberda@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:kyter@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:dallia@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:boltea@caerphilly.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Cabinet As Trustees of Blackwood Miners Institute held on 25th January 2023.
	4 Blackwood Miners' Institute Update Report.

